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Center Hall Remodel Questions & Answers 
 
Question: Please clarify whether CG-02 and DECO MTL-02 refer to the same product.  
CG-02 is indicated in the details and specifications; however, it is not listed in the finish 
schedule. 
Answer: The CG-02 callout at elevation 2/A401 should be CG-01. At detail 4/A631 it should 
be DECO MTL-02. 
 
Question: Are pre-bid comparable product substitutions being considered for the specialty 
ceiling SC-01?  
Answer: The Sculptform system was selected to meet the requirement for a metal, non-
combustible ceiling. The slats are narrower than those of most comparable metal ceiling 
systems we have evaluated, and Sculptform offers a wood-look finish that very closely matches 
the adjacent plastic laminate wood-look panels. While the design team is open to considering 
substitutions, any alternative product would need to meet all performance requirements and 
closely match the selected plastic laminate wood appearance. 
 
Question: Is there a 15% apprentice utilization requirement on this project?  
Answer: Yes, pursuant to RCW 39.04.320, all Washington State public works projects 
estimated at two million dollars ($2,000,000) or more require a minimum of 15% apprentice 
participation. Please complete the Bid Form 00 41 02 – Apprentice Utilization Plan – as part of 
the bid submission.  
 
Question: Is a sample contract available? 
Answer: Yes, a sample contract is included as attachment C of the Invitation to Bid. 
 
Question: Can you describe the building access and operations? 
Answer: Meydenbauer Center will remain open during construction with potential events 
taking place in the fourth floor meeting rooms and theatre throughout construction. Contractor 
will have access to Meydenbauer Center Loading Dock (3 bays) directly adjacent to Center 
Hall, a roll up door with ground level access to the ballroom, and a parking garage (height 
restricted for vehicles over 6’9" tall) facility at no charge. One delivery bay must be available 
for Meydenbauer Center usage. Immediately adjacent to the space is an open surface lot that 
can be used for staging.  
 
At the same time as this project, another contractor will be replacing the facility’s walk in 
refrigeration units on the fourth floor, as well as carpets on levels 2, 3 & 4.  
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Question: Can work happen during normal business hours? Can work happen on weekends or 
outside normal business hours?  
Answer: Yes, work can happen at any of these times. The facility is available 24/7.  
 
Question: Can any work happen before June 29?   
Answer: The ballroom is booked with events as late as June 28, so while advanced staging can 
take place, construction work will not be able to begin prior to June 29.  
 
Question: Is the carpet for this project furnished by the owner or contractor?  
Answer: The carpet will be furnished by the contractor. Once the contract is awarded, the 
architect recommends submitting the required submittals and shop drawings promptly to 
facilitate early ordering. The carpet vendor is aware of the construction schedule and is 
prepared to work with the GC to expedite the process. 
 
Question: What material is planned for the operable partition.  
Answer: Xorel as outlined in the Finish Schedule in the Construction Drawings on sheet G011, 
AFWP-01. 
 
Question: Do the operable partitions need to be removed to be refinished?  
Answer: The last time the fabric was replaced we believe they were removed, but we are open 
to contractor solutions on how to best complete the task of refinishing the operable partitions.  
 
Question: Are you making any changes to the house lighting?  
Answer: We are not replacing the overhead house lighting, but additional lighting is being 
added. Please refer to drawing sheets A151 and E201 and Section 265113 for specifics.  
 
Question: Will the new lighting be DMX controlled or 0-10. Will the lighting be run through 
the existing wires for DMX control or will the contractor need to route new wires? 
Answer: With the exception of the new type L4 fixtures, all other dimmed new lighting will be 
0-10V controlled via the existing Lutron GP lighting control panels (LCPA and LCPB). 
Contractor to provide Lutron GRX-TVI interfaces for each 0-10V dimming zone to allow control 
via the Lutron GP panels. Type L4 fixtures (the RGBW uplights) will be provided with on/off 
control via the existing Lutron GP panels and provided with color/dimming control via DMX. 
Contractor to provide all new DMX wiring from new DMX light dial controller to fixtures. Note 
additionally all lighting routed through the Lutron GP panels can be controlled via a plug in 
DMX lighting console. Refer to sheet E602 for lighting control riser diagram and additional 
control intent notes. 
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Question: Is there opportunity to rig scaffolding from the rigging points in the space?  
Answer: Rigging from the rigging points would be considered. A rigging plan would need to 
be reviewed and approval for safety in advance of acceptance.  
 
Question: Would the contractor have access to the in-house scissor and forklifts.  
Answer: Meydenbauer Center can make one scissor lift and our in-house forklift available for 
the contractor assuming the contractor provides the appropriate documentation that the driver 
is trained and certified in operation.  
 
Question: Is there any mechanical, HVAC or fire system work included in this project?  
Answer:  The scope of mechanical and fire protection work for this project is minimal. The new 
ceiling at the entry portals will consist of an open metal slat system located at the plenum 
space. Existing fire sprinklers and smoke detectors will require relocation and replacement with 
concealed heads. Refer to Detail 2/A551 for additional information. 
 
Question: Will the existing circuits in the allusion panel stay? Is the trim the same?  
Answer: The design intent is to reuse existing lighting circuits at the allusion panel wall (noted 
as circuits LCPA-12 and LCPA-23 in Hall A and LCPB-12 and LBCP-23 in Hall B) that are 
currently routed through existing lighting control panels LCPA and LCPB. Contractor to provide 
all additional control wiring as needed (either 0-10V wires or DMX cable) to accomplish control 
intent. The existing trim will be removed and a new light shelf will replace it. Please see detail 
3/A631.  
 
Question: How is the allusion panel attached to the wall?  
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Answer: The panels are attached with a 1 ½” deep hat channel @4’-0” O.C. fastened into 
existing metal studs. Here is a detail from the 2009 Renovation documents: 

 
 
Question: Can you provide the attendee list from the pre-bid meeting on January 12?   
Answer:  
Company Contact 
Western Ventures Jaci McIsaac 
NorthStar Matt DiLoreto 
Bayley Construction James Anania 
BN Builders Paul Santulli 
SafeGuard Eric Pfeifer 
Build for You Construction Long Zhao 
GLY Construction Sam Read 
Kinley Const David Worley 
Marpac Construction Joey Mar 
Northwest Woodworks (NWWI) Alex Sanabria 

Osmera Torres 
Construction Group Int Brayden Marion 
Hollywood Light Steve Randolph 
Petra, Inc. Kurt Sorensen 
Valley Elect Ben Ellingsworth 
NCES Corey Maughan 
Cochran, Inc.  Christopher Barnes 

Shelly Roscoe 
Swinerton Colin Reed 
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Question: Can you please confirm if the existing operable partitions are intended to be AWFP-
01 per A101 or WC-01 per 4/A402? 
Answer: The operable partition is identified as AFWP-01. The WC-01 tag shown refers to the 
wallcovering material that is directly applied to the existing gypsum board back wall of the 
alcove in which the operable partition is housed. The wallcovering is to be installed in three 
sections with Fry Reglet trim. Some gypsum board repair is anticipated following the removal 
of the existing wallcovering, as required. This scope is reflected in Elevation 4/A402 and noted 
in the Finish Schedule. Elevation 4/A402 depicts the condition when the operable partition is 
deployed. 
 
 


